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A Life Safety Code Recertification and 

State Licensure Survey was conducted by 

the Indiana State Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.70(a).  

Survey Date:  06/19/14

Facility Number:  000525

Provider Number:  155468  

AIM Number:  100267010

Surveyor:  Bridget Brown, Life Safety 

Code Specialist 

         

At this Life Safety Code survey, 

Breckenridge Health & Rehabilitation 

was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 

483.70(a), Life Safety from Fire and the 

2000 edition of the National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 

Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19, Existing 

Health Care Occupancies and 410 IAC 

16.2.

This one story facility was determined to 

be of Type V (111) construction and was 

fully sprinklered.  The facility has a fire 

alarm system with system wide 

hardwired smoke detection in corridors 

and in spaces open to the corridors.  

K010000 Submission of this plan of 

correction does not constitute 

admission or agreement by the 

provider of the truth of facts 

alleged or correction set forth on 

the statement of deficiencies.  

The plan of correction is prepared 

and submitted because of 

requirement under and state and 

federal law.  Please accept this 

plan of correction as our credible 

allegation of compliance.  Please 

find enclosed this plan of 

correction for this survey.  Due to 

the low scope and severity of the 

survey finding, please find the 

sufficient documentation 

providing evidence of compliance 

with the plan of correction.  The 

documentation serves to confirm 

the facility’s allegation of 

compliance.  Thus, the facility 

respectfully requests the granting 

of paper compliance.  Should 

additional information be 

necessary to confirm said 

compliance, feel free to contact 

me.
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Hardwired smoke detectors with local 

alarms were provided in 300 hall resident 

rooms and battery powered smoke 

detectors in resident sleeping rooms on 

the 100 and 200 halls.  The facility has a 

capacity of 57 and had a census of 37 at 

the time of this survey.

All areas where residents had customary 

access and providing facility services 

were sprinklered.

Quality Review by Robert Booher, Life 

Safety Code Specialist-Medical Surveyor 

on 06/30/14.

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by the 

following:

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Any door in an exit passageway, stairway 

enclosure, horizontal exit, smoke barrier or 

hazardous area enclosure is held open only 

by devices arranged to automatically close 

all such doors by zone or throughout the 

facility upon activation of:

a) the required manual fire alarm system;

b) local smoke detectors designed to detect 

smoke passing through the opening or a 

required smoke detection system; and

K010021

SS=E
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c) the automatic sprinkler system, if 

installed.    19.2.2.2.6,  7.2.1.8.2

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure access doors to 2 

of 5 hazardous areas such as a kitchen 

and laundry were held open only with 

devices which allowed the door to close 

automatically or upon activation of the 

fire alarm.  This deficient practice could 

affect visitors, staff and 10 or more 

residents.

Findings include:

a.  Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 06/19/14 at 

12:10 p.m., the self closing door between 

the laundry and service corridor was 

prevented from closing by a hall tree 

placed in front of the open door.  

b.  Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 06/19/14 at 

12:35 p.m., the self closing door between 

the kitchen and dining room was 

prevented from closing by a wooden 

wedge.

The maintenance director agreed at the 

time of the observations, the doors should 

not have been prevented from closing.

3.1-19(b)

K010021 K 021  Requires that any door in 

an exit passageway, stairway 

enclosure, horizontal exit, smoke 

barrier or hazardous area 

enclosureis held open only by 

devices arranged to automatically 

close all such doors by zone or 

throughout the facility upon 

activation of:a)  The required 

manual fire alarm systemsb)  

local smoke detectors designed 

to detect smoke passing through 

the opening or a required smoke 

detection system, andc)  The 

automatic sprinkler system, if 

installed. The facility will ensure 

this requirement is met through 

the following corrective 

measures. 1)  Doors in 

hazardous areas such kitchen 

and laundry will be shut at all 

times.  These doors will not be 

propped at any time to prevent 

them from closing.  2)  All 

residents have the potential to be 

affected.  No residents were 

affected.  3)  All staff Inserviced 

on Life Safety Code K021 and the 

importance of having doors shut 

and not propping them open.  

Dietary staff and Laundry staff 

instructed to keep doors closed at 

all times.  Dietary will serve meal 

trays by manually opening door 

each time tray served.  Laundry 

will under no circumstances prop 

door open from laundry room to 

corridor.   4)  The Administrator 

will conduct rounds to ensure that 

07/18/2014  12:00:00AM
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door in laundry room and kitchen 

are not propped open at any 

time.  These rounds will be 

conducted by Administrator or 

Designee daily on normal 

scheduled work days x 4 weeks, 

one time weekly x4 weeks, every 

2 weeks x2 months and quarterly 

thereafter.

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Required automatic sprinkler systems are 

continuously maintained in reliable operating 

condition and are inspected and tested 

periodically.     19.7.6, 4.6.12, NFPA 13, 

NFPA 25, 9.7.5

K010062

SS=E

1.  Based on observation and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure 1 of 1 

sprinkler heads in the medicine room was 

free of foreign materials, such as grime.  

NFPA 25, 2-2.1.1 requires sprinklers to 

be free of foreign materials and 

corrosion.  This deficient practice affects 

staff, visitors and 10 or more residents in 

the center smoke compartment.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 06/19/14 at 

11:35 a.m., two sprinkler heads 

protecting the area behind the gas dryers 

in the laundry were coated with a fuzzy 

gray grime.  The maintenance director 

acknowledged at the time of observation, 

the sprinkler heads should have been free 

K010062 K062 Requires automatic 

sprinkler systems are 

continuously maintained in 

reliable operating condition and 

are inspected and tested. The 

facility will ensure this 

requirement is met through the 

following corrective measures. 1)  

Sprinkler head in med room will 

be cleaned and free of grime per 

Maintenance.  Two sprinkler 

heads protecting the area behind 

the gas dryers in the laundry will 

be cleaned and free of fuzzy gray 

grime.  This will also be done per 

Maintenance.  The Sprinkler head 

in the soiled utility room will have 

a sprinkler head escutcheon 

placed per Safecare.  This will 

make the sprinkler 

head complete. 2)  All residents 

have the potential to be affected.  

No residents were affected. 3)  

Maintenance Director will be 

inserviced on the importance of 

07/18/2014  12:00:00AM
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of the grime.

  

3.1-19(b)

2.  Based on observation and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure sprinkler 

heads providing protection for 1 of 5 

hazardous areas such as a room used for 

the collection of soiled linen and trash 

receptacles was maintained.  This 

deficient practice could affect staff, 

visitors and 10 or more residents in the 

center smoke compartment.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 06/19/14 at 

11:50 a.m., the sprinkler head escutcheon 

was missing for the sprinkler head 

protecting the soiled utility room.  The 

maintenance director acknowledged, the 

sprinkler assembly was incomplete 

without the escutcheon. 

3.1-19(b) 

sprinkler heads being clean, in 

good repair and complete. 4)  

Monitoring will be 

done per Maintenance Director.  

This will be done one time 

weekly x4 weeks, then every 2 

weeks for x2 months, then 

quarterly thereafter.
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